
SUBJECT: Solicitation Number SSN10010R0531 - for Life/Accident and Medical/ 
Hospitalization insurance for LES 
 
 

 
Written Questions and Answers (1-35) 

(1) Are we allowed to submit multiple bids?  
Answer:   No, multiple bids are not permitted.  The Offeror must provide its best 
offer in accordance with Section B of the solicitation.  
  
(2) Are we allowed to improve on the package as the present package seems rather 

inadequate but with minimal cost?   
Answer:  Refer to Section C.1.1.(i), L.4.3.1(a)(ii) and  M.5.(i)(b)    
 
(3) Will I be able to obtain the group's last 3 years claims statistics / claim ratio? 
Answer:  The claims data will be emailed to one attendee from each of the 
companies that attended the pre-proposal conference.   Other interested 
companies may request a copy by email to stellah@state.gov  
 
(4) How is Offeror to be alerted to future amendments and answers to questions? 
Answer:   Future amendments and Q&As will be posted on 
http://singapore.usembassy.gov/contracting_opportunities.html.  Click on the 
“Group insurance” link.  Offerors are requested to view the postings on this 
website on a regular basis as new postings will be added when necessary. 
 
(5)  Base Year Price table. Clarify if “Employee + Spouse or child “ is different from 
“Employee + family plan” 
Answer:  “Employee + Spouse or Child” means that the employee elects to cover 
self plus either only the Spouse OR only the Child.  “Employee + family plan

 

” 
means that the employee elects to cover self along with Spouse AND Children.  
See Exhibit A for dependents and C.5. for definition of dependents. Please 
reference the paragraph in the solicitation that contains this explanation.  

(6)  Clarify if employee has the choice of selecting “with annual screening” and “without 
annual screening”; “with & without maternity with annual screening”. 
Answer:  Female employees have the option of selecting either annual screening 
or maternity.  Male employees will be covered under the annual screening benefit 
plan.  Each employee may select only one benefit and not both.  Both benefits are 
only given to employees, not their dependents.   
 
(7)  Can you provide the names of employees who are opting for any of benefits ? 
Answer:  We will release names of employees and selected benefits to the 
awardee only. Please reference the paragraph in the solicitation that states this 
information will be provided to the awardee.  
 
(8)  Page 19 
C.1.5 Other Eligible Participants 
1. How many children currently insured who are physically or mentally handicapped?   
Answer:  The U.S. Government does not provide this type of information. 
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(9)  K.3.d-f.  Please confirm that as local IFA, do I need to provide information as 
requested d thru f. 
Answer:  Yes, please check applicable boxes. 
 
 
(10)  L.4.3.2.1 
Due to confidentiality of my contracts, please clarify necessity to ‘List all contracts and 
subcontracts your company has held over the past three years for the same or similar 
work…..(and) provide the following information for each 
Answer:  Please provide information.  The U.S. Government is prohibited under 
FAR 3.104-4 from disclosing contractor source select information to any person 
other than a person authorized to receive such information (in this case, the 
Embassy contracting officer).  This information will be used by the Embassy for 
technical evaluation purposes only.   

contract and subcontract.” 

 
(11)  S
 

pecific Clarification  

“Offeror” and “Contractor” 
As your organization is used to dealing with an insurance company directly, the term 
Offeror and Contractor is used in this context.  However as an IFA (Independent 
Financial Advisory) firm such as First Principal Financial Pte Ltd, we work with insurance 
companies.  In this context, is First Principal known as the “Offeror” and the insurance 
company the “Contractor”?  Thank you for the clarification. 
Answer:  For purposes of this solicitation, the term “Contractor” refers to the 
successful awardee, so the term is used throughout the solicitation under Section 
B to Section I.  The term “Offeror” refers to the bidders and so is used under 
Section K, L and M.  These sections are declarations made by the offeror and 
include instructions to the offeror.  The successful offeror will ultimately become 
the Contractor for this solicitation. 
 
(12) Please fill up Group Insurance Fact-Finding Form. 
Answer:   The U.S. Government will not complete the above form.  However, the 
offerors themselves may transcribe the information provided in the Government's 
solicitation into the form.  All information required by this form is already provided 
in the solicitation.   
 
 (13) Solicitation, Offer And Award 
- Is Insurer required to endorse on every page of the Solicitation or only on pages which 
contain items relevant to the Insurance?    
Answer:  Please refer to Section L.  Section L.2 requires the offeror to submit the 
executed (endorsed) SF 33 and completed Sections B and K in addition to the 
Technical Proposal containing all technical factors and sub factors.  Please 
ensure that each volume is submitted in the number of copies stated in L.2.  
 
(14) Health Insurance 

− a) Page 8 and 13

Answer:  As this is for 

 :- Retention amount per separate premium paid per single 
employee and per family plan - please clarify we need to lump the total premium 
of ALL the singles employee (30 of them) OR indicate the unit rate per employee 
per annum will suffice. 

group insurance, the retention amount should be based on 
a group coverage of each of the 5 of the benefit plans. 



  
− b) Similarly how can the insurer indicate the premium per employee under the 

basic Life & ADD?  Every employee differs in sum assured as it ties with the 
salary?  Should we use per unit rate instead? 

Answer:  As this is for group insurance, individual salary levels are not relevant.  
Please see C.2.1.1. which provides coverage required for employee grade 
categories.  Also refer to Exhibit A which indicates number of employees in each 
grade category.  
 

− Answers to (a) & (b) above should be consistent, amount to be indicated should 
be either per employee OR the total premium under the same category?   

Answer:  As stated in B.3.2. and B.7.2., amount entered should be per employee. 
 
(15) Ref to C.1.1. (page 16) please confirm if the Benefits Limits are on per disability 
basis,  otherwise please provide your definition of Per Illness. 
Answer:  All limits are “per patient per illness per contract year” unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
(16) Please confirm that Emergency outpatient treatment is offered at S$2300 per visit 
OR per disability OR per policy year limit     
Answer:  The max limit is S$2300 per visit per contract year.  Refer to C.1.1.2.2. 
 
(17) Please confirm that the clinical limit is S$900 per visit OR per annum limit 
Answer:  The max limit is S$900 per visit per contract year.  .  Refer to C.1.1.2.4. 
 
(18) Ref to C.1.2.8 (page 18) please confirm GP referral is only required for specialist 
treatment at private clinics and or hospitals 
Answer:  A GP referral is required for specialist treatment at private clinics and/or 
hospitals.  However, refer to C.1.2.9. for explanatory note on medical emergency 
care. 
 
(19) Please confirm the Benefit Limit per annum or per visit under the TCM cover. 
Answer:  TCM coverage is included under C.1.1.2.2. or 1.1.2.4.  The TCM 
practitioner must be licensed (under MOH). Refer to C.1.2.2.  
 
(20) Please confirm that maternity cover is offered to married female employees only, 
while married male employees are covered for S$250 annual screening in place of the 
maternity cover   
Answer:  Only female employees have the option of selecting either annual 
screening or maternity.  Male employees will be covered under the annual 
screening benefit plan.  Each employee may select only one benefit and not both.  
Both benefits are only given to employees, not their dependents.   
 
(21) Please confirm that ONLY employees are covered for Maternity (female), Annual 
Screening (male), Outpatient General Practitioner, Outpatient Specialist & Lab Test and 
Dental 
Answer:  Please refer to Section C - C.1.1.1.9, C.1.1.2.3, C.1.1.2.4, C.1.1.2.5, 
C.1.1.2.6, C.1.1.4 for benefits applicable to employees only not dependents. 
 
(22) Dependants are covered for Hospitalisation (Inpatient Expenses) ONLY ? 



Answer:  Dependents will be covered under Section C - C.1.1.1.1. to  C1.1.1.8, 
C.1.1.2.1., C.1.1.2.2 and C.1.1.5 since these clauses did not state that they are “for 
Employees only.” 
 
(23) Miscarriage benefit, a standard benefit scheme under the Group Hospital & Surgical 
Insurance (GHS), please confirm that American Embassy wishes to have this removed 
from our standard GHS Proposal. 
Answer:  Refer to C.1.2.1. for limitations.  Miscarriage and abortions are not 
covered. 
 
(24) Please confirm that ALL coverages are restricted within treatment in Singapore 
only, which shall include Emergency Outpatient Treatment. 
Answer:  Yes, please refer to C.1.2.3. . 
 
(25) Please confirm that GP consultation is restricted to Panel clinics only, with no 
allowance to any non panel/ network clinics in Singapore, also not applicable to any 
Singapore Polyclinics, whether on cashless or reimbursement basis. 
Answer:  Please refer to C.1.2.7 where it states that the approved network of 
physicians and clinics provided by the Contractor must provide all outpatient 
benefit listed in C.1.1.1 and that an outpatient care card is issued to each 
employee. 
 
(26) Ref to C.1.2.10 (page 18) The Contractor shall provide the Government the list of 
Clinics, Hospitals and Specialists under its network. 
Please confirm whether it is a compulsory to provide a network of hospitals under this 
scheme and if so, private or Singapore Government Restructured hospitals or BOTH. 
Answer:  This refers to the Awardee providing a plan description outlining a list of 
clinics, hospitals and specialists to the Embassy.  
 
(27) Can we have the no of locally hired US citizens employed under non temp direct 
hire appointments, PSAs and PSCs  
Answer:  We will provide the total number of locally hired US citizens and the 
names after award.  
 
(28) For eligible Child dependant, must the child be pursuing tertiary education to be 
covered up to age 25?  
Answer:  Section C.1.5. states that the child “must be unmarried, economically 
dependent upon the employee….”  
          
(29) Please confirm that employees are to be covered up to max age 69 age next 
birthday) whereas  spouses up to 64 (anb)  
Answer:  Yes, spouses are covered up to end of age 64.  Existing employees will 
be covered beyond age 70 except for ORE employees.  Refer to C.1.5 and C.2.4.1. 
 
(30) Ref to Page 21 Group Life Insurance, please confirm what is the current Non-
Medical Limit or free cover limit 
Answer:  We do not have such limits in our requirement. 
 
(31) Ref to Page 35 Item (1)..The Contractor shall provide forms for the designation of 
beneficiaries for life insurance benefits to the COR. 
Please clarify  



 a) Am Embassy will administer the update of the form and ensure only the latest 
copy to be provided to the insurer regularly or upon a death claim.  Answer:  Yes, see 
H.4.(c)(1) 
 b) Am Embassy expects the Insurer to pay out a death claim directly to the 
nominated Beneficiary? Answer:  Yes, see H.4.(c)(2)  
 c) Am Embassy will provide a FULL discharge to the insurer before the insurer 
pays the death compensation to the nominated beneficiary  
Answer:  The Embassy will put into practice whatever is required under Singapore 
law. 
 
(32) ORE (Official Residence Expense) – according to page 48, there are only 3 
insured lives under this group?  Is the cover on FULL voluntary basis? 
Answer:  Coverage for ORE staff is under a rider.   If the rider is taken up, benefits 
for ORE staff will be the same as stated for Locally Employed staff.  See B.1.1. and 
G.4.4. 
 
(33) Page 20, Para 2 "During a period of Leave Without Pay or unpaid leave that is one 
pay period or less, coverage under the insurance contract will continue" - Please define 
"one pay period or less", per quarterly per annum premium?  
Answer:  Employees are paid every 2 weeks, so “one pay period” is period of 2 
weeks. 
 
34)  Noticed that the Excel provided does not indicate the gender of the dependents 
(children). Nor does it indicate the age of the spouse. Would you be able to provide the 
details?    
Answer: We will provide all pertinent details of insured employees to the awardee. 
 
35)  Also, has any member suffered or is suffering from serious conditions such as 
cancer, heart disease, diabetes, kidney disorder, liver disorder, stroke, arthritis, or other 
potentially debilitating conditions? If “Yes”, would you be able to provide the details? 
Answer:  Please refer to our claim history attachments where the diagnosis is 
stated for claims that were submitted and reimbursed. 


